

PARENT HANDBOOK

Community Schools DISTRICT OFFICE

619 Bowen St Longmont, Colorado 80501 303-702-7924

Table of Contents

Welcome to Care and Enrichment in St Vrain!	4
Purpose and Philosophy	4
Goals and Objectives	4
Licensing & Programs Offered	4
Before/After School K-5 Care	4
Summer Camp/Non-School Day	4
Pre-K Care	5
Important Safety Information	5
Check-In/Check-Out Procedures	5
Student Supervision	6
Children Leaving & Returning to Care Programs	6
Program Schedule	6
Registration	6
Registration Fee	7
Daily Fees	7
Tuition & Contract Policies	7
Non-Student Days	8
Payment, Program Changes or Withdrawal	8
Refund Policy related to Illness	9
Schedule Changes	9
Trading Days	9
Reporting Child Abuse	9
Emergency or Occasional Use of Care Services	9
Students With Special Needs	10
Toileting and Diapering (For Pre-K Care Students)	10
Late Pick-Up Procedures	10
Health	11
Illness and Exclusion from Care	11
How Sick is Too Sick Policy:	11
Illness Policy	11
Exclusion from Care	12
Injuries During Care	12
Medication	12
Inclement Weather	13
Delayed Start Due to Inclement Weather	14
Emergency Procedures	
Lost Child Procedure:	

Emergency Closing of School	
Special Activities	16
Children's Personal Belongings	16
Lost and Found Policy	17
Media and Internet Policy	17
Volunteers	
Visitors to the Care Program	17
Snacks	
Fields Trips	18
Field Trip - Late Arrival Policy	
Field Trip - Bus Safety	18
Guidance, Conduct and Behavior Guidelines	18
Suspension from School	20
Complaint Procedures	20
Termination of Services	20
Program Fee Schedule	21
Discounts and Financial Assistance	21

Welcome to Care and Enrichment in St Vrain!

We are delighted that you have chosen the St. Vrain Valley School District's before- and after-school care program for your family. At St. Vrain Valley School District, we understand the importance of providing a quality, nurturing care experience for your children. We recognize that parents seek opportunities for their children to learn, grow, and play in a safe and welcoming environment. Our Community Schools programs are offered under the direction of dedicated Community Schools staff, with oversight from the school principal and the district coordinator.

Purpose and Philosophy

Community Schools programs provide enriching opportunities for children and families in safe, welcoming environments, empowering all children to reach their fullest potential. As a dynamic and vital partner in advancing the school district's mission and vision, Community Schools is committed to inclusivity and does not discriminate. Our highly qualified staff deliver extended learning opportunities to enhance academic achievement, as well as enrichment and recreational activities to support a well-rounded experience for every child in our care.

Goals and Objectives

Our goal is to create a safe, structured, and positive environment where children can be creative, social, and happy. We aim to work collaboratively with school staff to offer activities that complement classroom learning and support the overall well-being of children.

Community Schools provides extended learning opportunities that link directly to student achievement. Our programs also offer access to computers and iPads, indoor and outdoor recreational activities, and nutritious snacks. We encourage both parents and students to share suggestions for toys, materials, and snacks that could enhance the experience.

Licensing & Programs Offered

Community Schools currently has care programs located in multiple schools across the District that are open to all children in those schools. Several of our programs are licensed for Preschool through Kindergarten and the rest of the programs are licensed for children ages 5 and up. All care programs are licensed according to regulations issued by the Colorado Department of Early Childhood (CDEC). Staff members are qualified and certified according to state licensing regulations. Current fire, health, and licensing inspection reports are available for your review.

Before/After School K-5 Care

Licensed care for students ages 5 years, 0 months -12 years, 0 months that is offered on site at school locations. Programs are open at 7:00am until school begins and then re-open when school ends until 6:00pm.

Summer Camp/Non-School Day

Licensed according to the Colorado Department of Early Childhood which is offered on site at select school locations. Programs are generally open from 7:00am through 6:00pm and are offered on non-student contact days. Activities may include off site field trips, swim trips, crafts and engaging experiences. School Age

summer camp care is offered to students 5 years, 0 months to 12 years (Aging out is site specific in the district check with each site separately). Summer Camp and Non School Days are open to SVVSD students only.

Pre-K Care

Licensed care for students aged 3 years, 0 months to 5 years, 0 months that is offered on site at school locations. Pre-K Care/Wraparound programs hours vary site by site but generally are available starting at 7am until 5:30 p.m. in selected schools during scheduled school hours, on regular school days and may be combined with before and after school Childcare programs.

Important Safety Information

The safety of your child is our 1st priority.

- A child will be sent to the care program on his regularly scheduled day, unless a note or call has been
 received from the parent. Email notification must be received at least one hour before care opens in the
 afternoon.
- If your child will be absent from after school care on his/her regular day, it is imperative that you let us know.
- If you call the school office to state that your child will be absent, please be sure to make a second phone call to the Community Schools onsite program office.
- If you send a note to your child's teacher stating that your child will not go to care after school, but will go home with you or home with a friend, please also notify the Community Schools office.
- At closing, staff walk the care program areas, check bathrooms, and compare the online sign-out program with name to face documents to ensure all students have been signed out for the day.
- Your child and his or her safety are very important to all of us! If your child does not come to care as scheduled, the Community Schools staff, the school office staff, the school district transportation department and often the classroom teacher and the Principal will become involved in a search for your child.
- In the unlikely event of program closure, parents will be notified as soon as a decision is made by the district.

Check-In/Check-Out Procedures

- 1. Parents must sign their child in for the morning session and indicate to the staff that their child has arrived.
- 2. Children will check-in with staff when arriving at care for the afternoon session. Staff will take attendance. Parents must sign their children out when picking them up every day.
- 3. Families are to enter and leave only by the designated door per school policy.
- 4. Children, who plan to go to an after school activity and then come back to care, must check in with the care staff right after school and tell the staff where they are going. Parents must indicate, in writing, the activities a child is scheduled to attend. If the after school activity is sponsored by Community Schools, please indicate on the activity registration form whether the child should go to care following the activity. When your child's schedule changes as after school activities change, please send updated schedules in writing; this may include weekly or daily notes to the Community Schools office. Care fees are required to hold the students' spot, or the child is subject to availability upon their return.

5. Only adults listed on the care application form and have permission, or indicated on a written note signed by a parent, will be allowed to pick up a child from care. The person picking up your child should be prepared to show a picture ID.

IF YOUR CHILD IS SICK OR WILL NOT ATTEND AFTER SCHOOL CARE FOR ANY REASON ON A REGULARLY SCHEDULED DAY, PARENTS ARE REQUIRED TO NOTIFY THE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS OFFICE DIRECTLY (notifying the school front office or the student's teacher is not sufficient).

Student Supervision

Safety of your child is of utmost importance to us and care staff continuously monitor the presence of children throughout the session while at school, on the playground and on field trips until all children are picked up for the day. The district has a procedure to ensure the location of children is known at all times; that children are accounted for throughout our hours of operation and that children are supervised at all times by an assigned staff member.

Children Leaving & Returning to Care Programs

During Pre-K care and summer camps, parents will from time to time pick up their children to take them to appointments and will want to bring them back to care. Though this is allowed, we encourage all parents to communicate (in advance) with the site program manager to ensure there is a minimum amount of disruption. During times of significant disruption, this may be an issue and managers may deny the return of the child (i.e. during naptime or transitions).

Program Schedule

The care programs are available on all school days, Professional Learning Community (PLC or late-start) days and on some non-student contact days. Care is not in session if school is canceled due to snow, inclement weather or on specified holidays. However, care is available at some schools on vacation days during the school year, and during the summer. Contact your Community Schools site program manager at the school your child attends for more information or contact the Community Schools main office at 303-702-7924.

Registration

Registration starts in the spring for the upcoming school year with a policy of first come, first served; space available policy. All SVVSD students are accepted and we do not discriminate on the basis of immunization status, race, color, national origin, gender identification, or disability. All enrollment decisions are contingent upon space availability and enrollment numbers. If program capacity is reached, applicants will be placed on a waiting list in the sequence that they signed up. Registration is on-line at stvrain.revtrak.net for all care programs. State and District policies require that we have **your child's registration forms and information completed before they may attend care.** In order for students to be successful, program managers need adequate time to review registrations before children can begin care. **We require at least 48 hours for processing.** If your child needs special assistance in any care program, this timeframe will be extended to ensure we have staff trained for successful integration.

Care registration includes:

- Parents' personal and employer phone numbers and addresses
- Names, addresses, and phone numbers of a minimum of 2 emergency contacts. Emergency contacts must be 18 years of age or older, must be local and be available to pick up your child in an emergency.
- A signed tuition agreement which is part of the registration application.
- Your child's schedule information.
- Known allergies and any other medical conditions indicated on the form

Registration Fee

A non-refundable registration fee of \$50 per child or \$75 per family is required to register for each program. The registration fee will be returned if a child is not accepted into the program. Parents in separate households with separate registrations are required to pay the registration fee with each application. Waiting lists do not require registration fees. Once moved off the waiting list, registration fees must be paid prior to program start. In the event you withdraw your child(ren) (for any reason), your registration fee will not be refunded. If you choose to re-enroll a new registration fee will be required prior to attendance. Registering at multiple sites for summer camp requires multiple nonrefundable registration fees.

Daily Fees

Addendum A outlines the fees for care offered through Community Schools. This includes but is not limited to Pre-K Care and K-5 Care.

SVVSD Employees receive a 10% discount on their care rates during the school year. This discount applies only to the employee and does not extend to non-employee parents in cases of shared custody. No discount for summer care or non school days.

Tuition & Contract Policies

Community Schools is an enterprise department of the school district that must be self- sustaining. We follow all SVVSD Board policies and all payment policies that are enacted in Community Schools are supported by the district.

SVVSD Community Schools understands that we are a partner in providing care for your children. Our goal is to provide high quality care for all SVVSD families and we have an expectation that parents follow our payment policies for care. Our process for billing and payments is as follows:

- Invoices are processed on the 15th of the month and sent to the primary Account Holder via email. Please make sure your SPAM filters allow for this email to be received in your inbox. Payments are due on the first of the month for the month of care. Parents are given until the 10th of the month to pay the bill without incurring a late fee.
- Unpaid balances on the 11th of the month will be assessed a \$25 late fee.
- If payments are not received or the primary account holder has not created a payment plan by the 15th of the month an email will be sent with a cancellation date of the end of the month. Care will not be reinstated until full payment is made. Unpaid care fees may inhibit student attendance at enrichment classes, late start programs and other Community Schools sponsored events.

- Parents may set up autopayment. Autopayments are charged to the primary account holder and processed before the late fee assessment date.
- Parents that complete the registration form are considered the Primary Account Holder and are responsible for all fees (even if there are payment arrangements between two or more parties). If the parent or guardian would like the account set up separately please contact the Program Manager prior to registration.
- Tax statements are available only to the Account Holders through the parent portal on Revtrak. Tax statements will not be provided to any other persons.

This policy is in effect for all care fees, including CCAP parent fees, late pick up fees, summer camp fees, non school day fees, and daily care fees.

Schedules: Community Schools provide families with flexibility. This allows parents to shift schedules on a monthly basis based on the number of days students are signed up to attend care. Parents will need to make schedule shifts before the 13th of each month for the upcoming month.

Collections: If an account has been sent to collections and wishes to return to Community Schools, the account must be paid in full to the collections agency. Once paid, the family must agree to set up a payment plan with the Community Schools main office for future payments.

For parents that claim care as a deduction on income tax forms, the District Tax I.D. number is 84-6014380 and care receipts are available upon request.

Non-Student Days

Care may be offered on some non-student contact days but not on days that the District is closed, such as holidays. If care is offered on days other than school days, information will be provided to care parents (through digital or written means). Registration and payment for this care are separate from monthly care billing. If your student attends a non-student day payment must be received in advance of care. If a child receives CCAP, authorization must be received prior to attendance (otherwise full payment for care will be expected).

Payment, Program Changes or Withdrawal

Statements are sent on or around the 15th of each month for the next month's payment. Please keep the staff informed of mailing address or email changes. Monthly payments are due on the first day of each month. A late fee of \$25.00 will be assessed if tuition is not received by the 10th of the month. If the monthly tuition payment, in addition to the late fee, is not paid in full by the last school day of the month, the student may not continue in the program until the account is paid in full. If you need assistance, or wish to discuss a payment plan option, please contact the Community Schools site program manager prior to the 10th of the month.

If you plan to decrease the number of days your child attends the program, or to withdraw from the program, a minimum notice of 10 school days (during the school year) or 10 business days during the summer must be given to the Program Manager. Regular billing will be in effect for those 10 days. Trading of days/segments is

not an option. No refunds will be given for a child's absence due to illness or vacation. Adding days to your child's schedule may require additional staff and prior approval is necessary. All changes, including starting dates, are at the discretion of the site program manager according to program and student needs. Schedule and payment policies for summer camps are slightly different from school year care fee requirements. Please refer to the Summer Camp Handbook for details on payment arrangements, attendance changes and other policies specific to summer camp.

Refund Policy related to Illness

Any child showing signs of illness during care hours (regardless of fever) will be sent home. Students can return to care as prescribed by the Boulder County Health Department and Colorado Department of Public Health Guidelines as outlined in the document "How Sick is Too Sick.". No refunds are issued for illness related absences.

Schedule Changes

Schedule changes are only accepted on a space available basis. Ten school days or business days (depending on the time of year) email notice is required to reduce days without payment penalties. Schedule changes may be assessed a \$25 change fee per change (per child) in addition to any increases in rates.

Trading Days

Trading days or segments is not an option for care in the district (this includes switching days, switching segments and switching between children). No credit or refund will be given for personal vacation days, sick days or unused days. If there is a credit on your account, a refund must be requested before the end of the school year (in which your child attended). Credits will not be carried over from one year to the next. Any unpaid amount under \$50 can only be processed as a credit or ePayment through our online portal.

Please note: Registration and payment for individual "non-student contact" day care and PLC (late-start mornings) are separate from your monthly care billing.

Reporting Child Abuse

The care staff is required to report any suspected child abuse. If the suspected child abuse did not occur at the care facility, the report of suspected child abuse must be made to the county department of social services in the county in which the child resides or to the local law enforcement agency in the community in which the incident is believed to have occurred. The 24/7 telephone number that we use to report child abuse in Colorado is: 1-844-CO-4KIDS (264-5437)

Emergency or Occasional Use of Care Services

K-5 occasional use is approved on a space available basis through the Community Schools office. All students in Pre-K/Wraparound care are required to attend (and/or be billed) for two days of care weekly (no matter whether they attend or not). Contact the Community Schools site program manager at least 10 school/business days prior to making changes in current arrangements or requesting special arrangements for care. Registration forms must be on file and applicable fees will apply.

Students With Special Needs

Students with special needs are encouraged to participate in our care programs. Care staff work collaboratively with the District Student Services Department and individual school staff, in partnership with the parents to provide individualized social and emotional intervention supports. Together we will determine the best arrangements for integrating your child into the program based on their needs.

Toileting and Diapering (For Pre-K Care Students)

Typically developing children are expected to be potty trained however we understand that accidents will sometimes occur. In the event of a toileting accident, we will help the child change their clothes and the soiled clothing will be sent home with the child in a container/bag. Please provide extra clothing daily in case of accidents. If no clothes are provided, we have limited clothes for emergencies. Please return the borrowed clothing promptly after being washed.

From time to time we have students in our program that are still in diapers/pull-ups. All diapers and wipes must be provided by the parents. Diapered children are checked every two hours and before/after naptime. Our diapering policy is as follows:

- 1. An additional staff person will be close enough to view the entire changing procedure.
- 2. A diaper log is completed and signed off by both persons stating the time, date and type of change.

Please reach out to the onsite program manager if you have any questions or concerns about this policy.

Late Pick-Up Procedures

It is critical for children to be picked up on time. Children will only be released to authorized individuals (as outlined in the registration form). Anyone picking up a child from our care programs must be 18 years of age or older and may be asked to provide identification. All parents **must** have **two** local (within 20 minutes of the facility) emergency contact persons on their contact list with phone numbers and addresses. Parents should not list themselves or their spouse as an emergency contact, nor should they list a relative that lives far away. Contacts must be people who would be available to pick up the child in the event of an emergency.

Staff will make sure all children are picked up and signed out from the program each day. If your child is not picked up at center closing, you will be billed a late pick-up charge of \$1.00 per minute. Frequent late pick-up or unpaid late pick-up fees may result in higher per minute fees and/or withdrawal of your child from the program.

If a parent does not pick up a child on time:

- 1. Beginning at 6:00pm, the parents will be called at home, work and at all phone numbers available. If the parent cannot get to the school within a reasonable length of time, the staff and parent will discuss who will come to pick up the child.
- 2. If no contact is made with a parent, care staff will call the emergency contacts immediately to pick up the child.

- 3. If the parents and the emergency contacts cannot be reached, the Community Schools site program manager, the building Principal, and/or a District Administrator will be called.
- 4. If all of the above steps have been exhausted and approximately twenty minutes or more has passed, the care staff will then call the local law enforcement for assistance in locating the parents.
- 5. Staff will not leave the facility until all children have been picked up or released to local law enforcement officials.

Health

While in the care of a Community Schools sponsored program, your student is covered by the Community Schools Health Coordinator who is a Registered Nurse. This nurse is separate from the SVVSD nurse department. Your signature on the registration form allows the Health Coordinator for Community Schools to have the authorization to discuss issues and concerns regarding your student's medical issues with the SVVSD district nurses and his/her health care provider. Having your signature ensures your student's continuity of care throughout their stay within a Community Schools sponsored program. Please be aware that you are still expected to review ANY health concerns with the site program manager prior to your student registering for any program (non school days, enrichment classes and care). Just as with school, children showing signs of contagious illness may not come to care. This is for the protection of your child as well as the other children.

Illness and Exclusion from Care

If a child becomes ill, is injured requiring first aid, or receives a head injury, a parent will be contacted immediately. An ill child will be isolated from the other students and supervised by care staff until the parent arrives. If the parents cannot be reached, the emergency contacts will be called. If the emergency contact cannot be reached, the Community Schools site program manager, the Principal, and/or a District Administrator will make emergency care decisions for your child. Be sure to communicate any allergies to staff.

How Sick is Too Sick Policy:

SVVSD follows the recommendations of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment for students staying home and/or being sent home for being ill. Below are CDPHE guidelines that state licensing requires we follow. Program managers can provide the full document to parents. Here is the link to the state guidelines - https://drive.google.com/file/d/1RcdCmU4SYXwmVhJrA3Pyk0gP0MTDClkF/view

Illness Policy

Any child showing signs of illness during care hours (regardless of fever) will be sent home. Students can return to care as prescribed by the Boulder County Health Department and Colorado Department of Public Health Guidelines provided by the district's Student Services department.

Children with fever of 100.4 degrees will be sent home.

Children with frequent, loose or watery stools (not caused by food or medicine) or diarrhea will be sent home. Children may return 24 hours after their last episode of diarrhea (unless caused by an illness that requires them to stay home longer such as COVID19).

Children who vomit will be sent home. If a child has a recent head injury, watch for other signs of illness.

If motion sickness is a problem we strongly suggest parents get physician's orders for anti-nausea medications for bus rides and other motion activities.

Exclusion from Care

Excluding (defined as keeping a child from attending the child care setting) a child who has an infectious disease from attending child care or school may decrease the spread of illness to others. The decision to exclude is typically based on the disease, and should be made in conjunction with the SVVSD care staff, administration, nurse coordinator, the state or local public health agency, health care professionals, and/or parents/guardians. If your child has a contagious illness, the Colorado Department of Early Childhood requires that parents pick up the child as soon as possible. We will contact you if we suspect that your child may have a contagious illness.

In situations where a child does not have a diagnosed disease/condition but has signs or symptoms indicative of a potentially infectious disease, exclusion may also be warranted.

Generally, if any of the following conditions apply, exclusion from child care should be considered:

- The child doesn't feel well enough to participate in normal activities (such as overly tired, fussy or won't stop crying)
- The child needs more care than the teachers and staff can give, and still care for the other children.
- If the child is ill with a potentially contagious illness and exclusion is recommended by a healthcare provider, the state or local public health agency, or these guidelines.
- If the child has signs or symptoms of a possible severe illness such as trouble breathing.
- Community Schools will not accept children who did not attend school due to illness.

Injuries During Care

If a child receives an injury, the parents will be contacted to discuss the accident. The decision will then be made whether to come and pick up the child immediately or wait until the normal time to pick up the child. If a child acquires any cuts and/or scrapes, the area will be washed out with soap and water, and a Band-Aid will be placed on it. We are not allowed to place medication of any kind on a wound (per state licensing guidelines).

If an injury is serious, 911 will be contacted immediately followed by a call to the parents. If the parents cannot be reached, emergency contacts will be called. If none of the emergency contacts can be reached, the Community Schools site program manager, the Principal, and/or a District Administrator will make the decision concerning emergency care for your child.

Medication

According to Colorado State regulations, District policy, and the Nurse Practice Act (12-38-132, CRS), medication given to a child must be authorized with a written statement from the child's doctor and given to the Community Schools site program manager with the knowledge and written consent of the parent/guardian. This

authorization must be provided for each new prescription and in the case of long-term medication, on an annual basis.

All medication must remain in the original container bearing the original label that shows: the child's name, prescribing doctor's name, pharmacy name and telephone number, date prescription filled and expiration date, name of the medication, dosage, how often to give medication, and the length of time. care staff is prohibited from dividing medication to appropriate dosage requirements. When medication needs to be divided, it is the responsibility of the parent. When no longer needed, medication shall be returned to parents or guardians.

Non-prescription medication will <u>only</u> be administered by care staff with the written consent from a doctor and a written consent of the parent/guardian.

All medications are kept locked and out of reach of children in the care area, and will be administered by a staff member that has been trained in medication administration.

If your child has a medication requirement, please discuss this with your Community Schools site program manager. The parent is responsible for conveying a need to the staff so a plan can be implemented. Our Community Schools nurse trains and delegates staff to give medication according to the Nurse Practice Act.

Inclement Weather

Outdoor play is an important daily activity for children and as such, we strive for the children in care to go outside every day. Children will receive assistance dressing for outside weather if necessary. In the event of inclement weather; excessive heat, cold, wind, snow, or rain, outdoor play will be canceled. In these cases, the gym is available for physical play. Special areas may also be set aside in the building so children can have physical play. The district follows the Weather Watch Guidelines and the Air Quality Index.

(Chi	ilc	IC	a	re	W	ea	at	he	er '	W	at	cŀ	1
Wind-Chill Factor Chart (in Fahrenheit)														
						Wind S	peed in	mph						
40		Ca	lm		5	10	1	5	20	25	3(0	35	40
fure	4	10		40	36	34	3	2	30	29	28	3	28	27
Air Temperature	3	30		30	25	21	1	9	17	16	1:	5	14	13
dμ	2	20		20	13	9		6	4	3	1	1	0	-1
Tel	1	10		10	1	-4		7	-9	-11	-12	2	-14	-15
Air		0		0	-11	-16	-1	9	-22	-24	-20	6	-27	-29
	-1	10		-10	-22	-28	-3	2	-35	-37	-39	9	-41	-43
Comfortable for out door play				lay		Caut	ion				Dan	ger		
			- H	Heat	Index	(Cha	rt (in	Fahi	renhe	eit %)				
						elative Hu		Percen						
Œ		40	45	50	55	60	65	70	75	80	85	90	95	100
e n	80	80	80	81	81	82	82	83	84	84	85	86	86	87
Air Temperature	84	83	84	85	86	88	89	90	92	94	96	98	100	103
adu L	90	91	93	95	97	100	103	105	109	113	117	122	127	132
Ter	94	97	100	103	106	110	114	119	124	129	135			
Air	100	109	114	118	124	129	130							
	104	119	124	131	137									

Air Quality Index	Who Needs to be Concerned?	What Should I Do?		
Good 0-50	lt's	a great day to be active outside.		
Moderate 51-100	Some people who may be unusually sensitive to particle pollution.	Unusually sensitive people: Consider reducing prolonged or heavy exertion. Watch for symptoms such as coughing or shortness of breath. These are signs to take it easier. Everyone else: It's a good day to be active outside.		
Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups 101-150	Sensitive groups include people with heart or lung disease, older adults, children and teenagers.	Sensitive groups: Reduce prolonged or heavy exertion. It's OK to be active outside, but take more breaks and do less intense activities. Watch for symptoms such as coughing or shortness of breath.		
		People with asthma should follow their asthma action plans and keep quick relief medicine handy.		
		If you have heart disease: Symptoms such as palpitations, shortness of breath, or unusual fatigue may indicate a serious problem. If you have any of these, contact your heath care provider.		
Unhealthy 151 to 200	Everyone	Sensitive groups: Avoid prolonged or heavy exertion. Move activities indoors or reschedule to a time when the air quality is better.		
		Everyone else: Reduce prolonged or heavy exertion. Take more breaks during all outdoor activities.		
Very Unhealthy 201-300	Everyone	Sensitive groups: Avoid all physical activity outdoors. Move activities indoors or reschedule to a time when air quality is better.		
		Everyone else: Avoid prolonged or heavy exertion. Consider moving activities indoors or rescheduling to a time when air quality is better.		
Hazardous 301-500	Everyone	Everyone: Avoid all physical activity outdoors.		
		Sensitive groups: Remain indoors and keep activity levels low. Follow tips for keeping particle levels low indoors.		

Delayed Start Due to Inclement Weather

The most common reason for school closures is blowing snow and severe weather.

When forecasts are definitive, the district will close or delay school with as much advance notice as possible. When forecasts are less definitive, anytime our community experiences inclement weather, our operations and leadership teams are driving roads throughout the evening and early morning, and in communication with various city and town officials, closely monitoring weather conditions. In these instances, the district makes every effort to communicate with you no later than 5:30 am on the school day in question.

If the weather is such that the normal start is problematic due to weather conditions, the district may implement a 2-hour delayed start. A delayed start will only be used if the delay will accommodate warmer temperatures at the bus stops and/or a substantive improvement in road conditions.

In the event of a delayed start due to inclement weather, school starts 2 hours later than regularly scheduled start times. Bus schedules will also start 2 hours later. (This is a slight change from our normal late-start days that are built into the yearly academic calendar in which students arrive 2.5 hours later.)

School days delayed due to inclement weather also require the following service adjustments:

Preschool:

- Morning Classes: Will be canceled
- Afternoon Classes: Will follow normal schedules
- Full Day: Will begin 2 hours later than their regularly scheduled start time
- Wrap-around care will open when when school opens (at the first bell)

Spark! Discovery Preschool:

- Morning Classes: Will be canceled
- Afternoon Classes: Will follow normal schedules
- Full Day: Will begin 2 hours later than their regularly scheduled start time
- Wrap-around care will begin at 11:00 a.m.

Kindergarten Programs:

- Full-day Kindergarten Classes: Will begin 2 hours later than their regularly scheduled start time Community School & Enrichment Programs:
 - Before School: Will be canceled
 - After School: Will follow normal schedules

Meals:

Breakfast: Will not be provided

Lunch: Will be provided

Emergency Procedures

The safety and security of students and staff is one of our highest priorities. SVVSD has adopted the I Love U Guys Foundation, Standard Response Protocol (SRP) and Community Schools follows this same protocol. The SRP is designed to establish standards for responding to emergencies that may occur in or near our schools. It is based on basic response actions: Lockout, Lockdown, Evacuate, Shelter in Place and Hold.

Secure – threat or hazard is outside the school building

<u>Students:</u> brought inside the school building and exterior doors are locked and secured. Whenever possible, classroom activities would continue uninterrupted.

<u>Parents:</u> monitor your phone line for communication from the school or District and wait for directions regarding reunification. You're asked not to respond to the school until the school has notified you.

Lockdown – threat or hazard(active shooter) is inside the school building

<u>Students:</u> classrooms are locked, teachers turn off lights and keep students quiet and out of sight of any internal threat.

<u>Parents:</u> monitor your phone line for communication from the school or District and wait for notification regarding reunification. You're asked not to respond to the school until the school has notified you.

Evacuate – moving students from the building to an outside area or another location (reunification with families)

Students: leave personal items and move in an orderly fashion to the next location.

<u>Parents:</u> You will be notified of the evacuation site and asked to pick up your child. You or a family member would also be asked to show a picture ID and complete a reunification form before your child would be released.

Shelter in Place - students move to main level or interior rooms of the school building (e.g. tornado)

Students: asked to sit facing the wall while covering their head.

Parents: wait until the hazard has passed before you respond to the school to pick up your child.

HOLD! - Students will remain in the classroom with the door locked until "All Clear" is announced. Hallways should remain clear and no students should be in restrooms.

Children with disabilities have an individualized written plan that includes any special requirements for transitions and emergencies.

Lost Child Procedure:

Children are actively supervised during program hours; in the unlikely event that a child is missing, the following emergency plan is put into effect:

- The staff will thoroughly search the school, the school bus, field trip/swim trip location and school grounds for the child.
- District administration, the police and the parents/guardians will be contacted.
- The staff will then start to search surrounding areas such as neighborhoods.

Emergency Closing of School

In the event that school must be closed due to an emergency, before the normal dismissal time, the care children must have an alternate place to go. Please fill in the school's emergency early dismissal form indicating where your child is to go. It is very important that you discuss emergency plans with your child on a periodic basis. Please be aware that in some emergencies the school phones may be out of order. If this happens, contact could possibly be made from another phone. It is imperative that you communicate in advance your emergency plans to the school and to your child.

IF SCHOOL IS CLOSED EARLY, CARE WILL CLOSE. A tuition credit is given for this type of closure if the child continues to attend care. If the child stops attending care within 45 days of this credit (through one billing cycle), it will not be refunded to the parent.

If school is canceled, every attempt is made to communicate with parents as early as possible at their home or work phones, through email, and through their emergency contact numbers. It is imperative that emergency contact numbers be up-to-date and not be the same number as the parents phone numbers.

Our first priority in any emergency situation is the safety of the children and the care program is staffed until all children are picked up.

Special Activities

Language, science, art and culture classes may be taught by care staff or specialized teachers as a part of the care program to give children exposure to a variety of activities.

Children's Personal Belongings

Children should not bring toys, games, personal electronics (including but not limited to cell phones, ipods, earbuds, watch phones) or money (or other personal items) to care. If a child does bring any personal items to school, they must remain in his/her backpack. Cell phones and other devices must never be used to take photos

as this is a copyright violation. Backpacks and jackets are hung on hooks, placed in baskets or in provided cubbies.

We are not responsible for stolen or lost property. The district is not responsible for eyeglasses and hearing aids even though these are necessary medical devices.

Lost and Found Policy

The Centers for Disease Control state that each child's belongings are separated from others' and in individually labeled containers, cubbies, or areas. Any items that are co-mingled (such as in a lost and found bin) may be cross-contaminated. Items that are not picked up in a timely manner may need to be thrown away. Please label all items with student names.

Media and Internet Policy

Each child care program allows computer time, electronic usage and movie viewing during the care program. All screen time is monitored by the care staff whether it is computer time, movie viewing or other electronic usage. Each program site has developed specific time limit guidelines. All video, internet and game time on district devices is closely monitored and filtered. SVVSD filters and SVVSD school sites list allowable websites and SVVSD internet filters provide an additional layer of internet security.

Movies are occasionally shown in our program. Parents are asked to sign approval for their child to watch movies in care or to request that their child not watch movies. Parents are sent notices in advance of the movie title and rating and given the opportunity to opt out.

Volunteers

Volunteers are only allowed to work within our programs with prior permission and approval from the District Coordinator. At no time are court appointed community service workers to be allowed to work off their hours during Community Schools programming.

Visitors to the Care Program

Visitors to the program must sign in at the front office <u>and</u> sign into the program. Parents may come into the program to pick up or visit with their child, but may not come for the purpose of playing with other children. Visitors will never be left alone with any child.

Snacks

Nutritious snacks are served in our programs. In Pre-K programs we provide AM and PM snacks. In our before and after care programs we provide an afternoon snack only. Please note that no morning snack will be served. If a child has an allergy, special accommodations will be made. Out of respect for the many food allergies, homemade snacks may not be served. All food prepared, served and stored in the Community Schools care center meets state Department of Public Health and Environment standards.

Fields Trips

Field trips are offered as part of summer programs. Permission for field trips is included in the registration form for Summer Camp. Extra staff is available for field trips to ensure quality supervision of children.

Field Trip - Late Arrival Policy

The field trip time and place will be posted for parents on the day of the field trip. If a parent arrives with a child after the program has left and would like to meet the program at the field trip location, this must be approved by the site program manager in advance. Supervision or transportation will not be provided by any other school staff. Upon arrival at the field trip destination, parents must accompany the child to meet with program staff and sign their child into the program. If the parent is unable to meet the program at the field trip destination, the child may come to the care program after the care program returns from the field trip.

Field Trip - Bus Safety

Transportation for field trips will be on a district school bus. The bus driver will review bus safety with the children before the bus departs for the field trip. Children are expected to stay in their seats at all times and use quiet voices. At a railroad crossing, the bus will come to a complete stop. Passengers will remain silent while the bus driver stops, looks and listens. In case of an emergency on the bus, the adult closest to the emergency door may have to open that door. Please talk with your child at home on how to stay safe on the bus.

Guidance, Conduct and Behavior Guidelines

Care participants must:

- 1. Show respect for children, staff, self, and property.
- 2. Be responsible for their actions and recognize responsibility to the group.
- 3. Work and play cooperatively with others.
- 4. Demonstrate a positive attitude toward self and school.
- 5. Follow school rules. The same rules that apply during the school day apply to care participants on the playground, in the gym, in the halls, and throughout the school. The program follows the district discipline code handbook.

Community Schools care programs have a positive atmosphere and very few behavior problems. **Program staff promote responsive and positive child, staff, and family relationships.** Behavior and program management practices have been designed to create and maintain a culture that promotes children's mental health, social, and emotional well-being. Our program staff support positive behavior, positive peer interactions, and emotional competence. Our team resolves behavior problems on a fair and impartial basis. We provide individualized and researched-based social and emotional intervention support for children who need them, including methods for understanding child behavior; and developing, adopting, and implementing a team-based positive behavior support plan with the intent to reduce challenging behavior and prevent suspensions and expulsions.

Community Schools Behavior Philosophy:

- Participants have the ability to make good choices.
- Participants are responsible for their actions.
- Participants have the opportunity to change negative behavior.
- Self-discipline of the student allows the student to continue as a member of the program.

Community Schools makes every effort to ensure children are able to be successful. The staff's response to negative behavior problems are calm and consistent. Consequences of negative behavior are discussed with care participants at the beginning of the school year. Parental support at home and input to the system is important. Parents are welcome to discuss all procedures with staff. When implementing behavior consequences, the staff will be positive, encouraging and caring with the child.

A summary of the staff's response to disruptive behavior is to:

- Be fair (hear all sides of a situation)
- Listen to the child
- Focus on a solution rather than a punishment
- Give the child an opportunity to change
- Use praise to reinforce positive behavior

Our care team receives regular training and support from the District's student services department for any and all mental health concerns.

Communication between parents and staff is very important. The care team partners with the parents to discuss progress, social, emotional and physical needs. If a child shares separate residences with the parents, both parents will be contacted if a child is having behavior problems in care. If you have a concern or questions about any of the care behavior management procedures, please contact the Community Schools site program manager.

Our greatest wish is that the care experience will be a happy time for your child. Our goal is to work with students and parents to solve problems in a positive and constructive manner. The staff works with the classroom teacher, school counselor, student services staff, mental health professionals, Community Schools Coordinator and/or the Principal to assist students with challenges.

On the rare occasion when a situation cannot be resolved, suspension/expulsion of the child from the program may occur. Steps are taken in advance which may include written reports, discussions with parents, behavior contracts, additional positive interventions and supports to support an environment for growth and development. All steps are documented prior to the suspension/expulsion. In the unlikely event that it becomes necessary to remove your child, a conference with the site program manager, District Coordinator and/or Principal and parent/guardian will take place before any final decisions are made.

A child's enrollment may be suspended or evaluated for change immediately for the following reasons:

- Leaving the direct supervision of a staff person (referred to as eloping) which may compromise the staff's ability to maintain child care licensing rules and regulation required ratios as a licensed provider.
- Behavior of a child that poses a threat to their own safety or the safety of others.
- Destruction to the property of the program, school, staff or peers

Suspension from School

If a student is suspended from school or the care program due to behavior or disciplinary reasons, the account will be charged as indicated by the registration contract. Students suspended from school (including in-school suspension) are also suspended from the care program. The care program has no option for in-care suspension so children will not be allowed to attend if they received in-school suspension.

Complaint Procedures

The following may be contacted if there is a complaint regarding the Community Schools Care Program:

- 1. The Community Schools site program manager
- 2. The building Principal
- 3. The District Community Schools office: Susan Zimmerman, District Coordinator, 303-702-7914
- 4. To review a file or to file a complaint about the program, The Colorado Department of Early Childhood: (303) 866-5958, 710 S Ash St, Denver, CO 80222

Termination of Services

If you plan to withdraw your child from care, please give a written notice to the Community Schools site program manager. Fees will be in effect for 10 business days after the date of notification. At termination, no refund will be given. No refunds will be given for early withdrawal. You are responsible for any unpaid fees at the time of withdrawal. Reactivation fee - if you decide to re-enroll your child in after school care, you will be charged a \$50 registration fee to re-enroll. All previous unpaid fees must be paid in full before attending.

The care program reserves the right to dismiss a child from the care program for non-payment of tuition, continuous late pick-up of a child, a parent or child not following program, school or District rules, regulations, policies, etc.

Addendum A - Fees for 2025-26 School Year

SVVSD Community Schools 2025-26 Program Fee Schedule

Registration Fees	
Wraparound Pre-K Care	\$50 individual/\$75 family
School Year K-5 Care	\$50 individual/\$75 family

Wraparound Pre-K Care		
Two day per week minimum attendance required		
Child enrolled in SVVSD Preschool	\$45 per day	
Child NOT enrolled in SVVSD Preschool	\$55 per day	
Drop-in (adding an additional day to weekly schedule)	\$60 per day	

School Year AM/PM			
AM Care	\$16 per segment		
PM Care	\$20 per segment		
Both AM and PM Care	\$36 per day		
Drop-In Fee (less than 48 hours notice)	Additional \$16 AM; Additional \$20 PM		
Late Start	Additional \$14 for a total of \$30		

Non School Days	
Registration Fees	Waived since this is only available to current care families
Per Day Rate	\$60 per day

Summer Camp		
2025 Summer	\$60 per day	
Rates will be released in the Spring of the upcoming summer.		

Discounts, Financial Assistance & Change Fees

- SVVSD Employees receive a 10% discount on their care rates during the school year. This discount applies only to the
 employee and does not extend to non-employee parents in cases of shared custody. No discount for summer care or non
 school days.
- Financial assistance is available through the county where the student resides.
- Schedule changes will result in a \$25 change fee